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PER CURIAM: 

Derrick Antwon Rushing appeals from the 50-month sentence 

imposed following his guilty plea for possession of a firearm by 

a felon in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 922(g)(1), 924(a)(2) 

(2012).  Rushing disputes the district court’s application of a 

four-level sentencing enhancement for using or possessing a 

firearm in connection with another felony offense — 

specifically, felony sale of cocaine.  We affirm. 

We review the district court’s factual determinations in 

applying the Sentencing Guidelines for clear error.  United 

States v. Strieper, 666 F.3d 288, 292 (4th Cir. 2012).  Where a 

defendant “[u]sed or possessed any firearm or ammunition in 

connection with another felony offense,” a four-level 

enhancement shall apply.  U.S. Sentencing Guidelines Manual 

§ 2K2.1(b)(6)(B) (2015).  The “in connection with” element is 

satisfied “if the firearm facilitated, or had the potential of 

facilitating” the other offense, or if it “was present for 

protection or to embolden the actor.”  United States v. Jenkins, 

566 F.3d 160, 162 (4th Cir. 2009); see USSG § 2K2.1 cmt. 

n.14(A).  Where the other felony is a drug trafficking offense, 

a firearm “found in close proximity to drugs, drug-manufacturing 

materials, or drug paraphernalia . . . necessarily has the 

potential of facilitating another felony offense.”  Jenkins, 566 

F.3d at 163 (internal quotation marks omitted) (citing USSG 
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§ 2K2.1 cmt. n.14(B)).  This element is not satisfied, however, 

where the presence of the firearm is “the result of accident or 

coincidence.”  United States v. Blount, 337 F.3d 404, 411 (4th 

Cir. 2003) (internal quotation marks omitted). 

Rushing contends that there is no evidence that the firearm 

was used in connection with the sale of cocaine because the 

firearm was only discovered two days after his last known drug 

sale, and there is no proof that he possessed the firearm at the 

residence when drug transactions occurred.  Based on the record 

before us, however, we conclude that the district court 

reasonably inferred that Rushing possessed the firearm in 

connection with drug trafficking.  The gun was recovered in the 

same room as drug paraphernalia and nearby drug residue, and 

Rushing admitted that he acquired the gun for personal 

protection.  See Jenkins, 566 F.3d at 162-63; USSG § 2K2.1 cmt. 

n.14(B).  Therefore, the district court’s decision to apply the 

§ 2K2.1(b)(6)(B) enhancement was not clearly erroneous. 

Accordingly, we affirm the district court’s judgment.  We 

dispense with oral argument because the facts and legal 

contentions are adequately presented in the materials before 

this court and argument would not aid the decisional process. 

 
AFFIRMED 


